ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 17, 2017
2:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

Andy Josephson, Co-Chair
Geran Tarr, Co-Chair

Dean Westl ake, Vice Chair
Harriet Drumond

Justin Parish

Chris Birch

CGeor ge Rauscher

David Tal erico

DeLena Johnson
M ke Chenault (alternate)
Chris Tuck (alternate)

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO.
"“An Act

19

limting the application of neonicotinoid pesticides.”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO.
"An  Act

to
products;

relating
pref erences for
fisheries products harvested or
the sale of

46
to the
agricul tural

state and

mlk, mlk products, raw mlKk,

and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO.
"“An Act

172

relating to the regulation and production of

henp; relating to industrial henp pilot prograns;
i ndustri al henmp is not included in the
"marijuana' ; and clarifying that adding industrial

does not create an adulterated food product.™

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

muni ci pal pr ocur ement
products harvested in the state and
processed in the state; relating

raw ml k

i ndustri al
provi di ng that
definition
hemp to food

March 17, 2017



PRESENTATI ON(S) AGRI CULTURE ACTI VI TIES | N ALASKA
- HEARD

PRESENTATI ON(S) :  NENANA AGRI CULTURE LAND
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 19

SHORT TI TLE: BAN NEONI COTI NO D PESTI Cl DES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) DRUMMVOND

01/ 18/ 17 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/17

01/ 18/ 17 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/18/ 17 (H) RES

03/ 17/ 17 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM GRUENBERG 120
BILL: HB 46

SHORT TITLE: PROCURE AK FI SH AG PROD.; ALASKA GROWN
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TARR

01/ 18/ 17 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 13/ 17

01/ 18/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H) STA, RES, FIN

03/ 08/ 17 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRALS
03/ 08/ 17 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 08/ 17 (H) RES, FIN

03/ 15/ 17 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 15/ 17 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 15/ 17 (H) M NUTE ( RES)

03/ 15/ 17 (H RES AT 6: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 15/ 17 (H -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 17/ 17 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
BILL: HB 172

SHORT TITLE: | NDUSTRI AL HEMP PRODUCTI ON LI CENSES
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE('s) DRUMVIOND

03/ 10/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 10/ 17 (H RES, JUD

03/ 15/ 17 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 15/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 15/ 17 (H M NUTE ( RES)

03/ 15/ 17 (H) RES AT 6: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 15/ 17 (H -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 17, 2017



03/ 17/ 17 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
W TNESS REG STER

JOANNA SCHULTZ, Staff

Representative Harriett Drumond

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behal f of Representative Drunmond, prine
sponsor, explained the changes made in the proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 19, and answered questi ons.

CHRI STI NA CARPENTER, Director

D vision of Environnmental Health

Depart ment of Environnmental Conservation (DEC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
19.

ROB CARTER, WManager

Plant Materials Center (PM)

Di vision of Agriculture

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
19.

DAVI D OTNESS

Cordova, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 19, offered
testi nony.

LOU S TOZZI

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 19, offered
t esti nony.

PAMELA K. M LLER, Biol ogi st and Executive Director

Al aska Community Action on Toxics (ACAT)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 19, had her
witten testinony paraphrased by Patti J. Saunders.

PATTI J. SAUNDERS

Devel oprment Director

Al aska Comrunity Action on Toxics (ACAT)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2017



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question during the hearing on
HB 19.

JOHN ANDERSON
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 46.

DAVI D OTNESS
Cor dova, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 46.

JOHANNA HERRQN, Devel opnent Specialist |1

Di vision of Agriculture

Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR)

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question during the hearing on
HB 46.

DAVI D OTNESS
Cordova, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 172.

JACK BENNETT

Al aska Representative

| ndustrial Henp Manufacturing, LLC (IHVM

Hormer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 172, offered
testi nony.

VWES SCHACHT

Al aska Cannabi s Advocacy

Fritz Creek, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 172, offered
testi nony.

ROBERT CARTER, Manager

Plant Materials Center (PM)

Di vision of Agriculture

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
172.

PATRI CK FI TZGERALD, St aff
Representative Harriet Drunmond
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information during the hearing on
HB 172, on behalf of Representative Drummond, prime sponsor.

GEORCGE PI ERCE

Kasi | of, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered testinony during the hearing on HB
172.

ED MARTIN, JR

Cooper Landi ng, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered testinony during the hearing on HB
172.

ARTHUR KEYES, Acting Director

Di vision of Agriculture

Department of Natural Resources

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a presentation regarding agricultural
activities in Al aska.

ELI JAH VERHAGEN, St af f

Representative Dave Tal erico

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Gave a PowerPoint presentation, "Nenana
Totchaket Bridge to Resources,” on behalf of Representative
Tal eri co.

ARTHUR KEYS, Director

Di vision of Agriculture

Departnent of Natural Resources

Cty, Alaska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered comments during the presentation on
Nenana Agricul ture Land.

WYNN MENEFEE, Deputy Director

Trust Land O fice (TLO

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered information during the presentation
on the Nenana Agricul ture Land.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

2: 05: 39 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2017



CO- CHAIR ANDY JOSEPHSON called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 2:05 p.m Represent ati ves
Josephson, Talerico, Parish, Wstlake, Rauscher, Drunmond, and
Tarr were present at the call to order. Representative Rauscher

arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 19- BAN NEONI COTI NO D PESTI Cl DES

2:06: 44 PM

CO CHAI R JOSEPHSON announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 19, "An Act limting the application of
neoni coti noi d pesticides.”

2:07: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND, speaking as the sponsor of HB 19,
remar ked:

One in three bites of food we eat relies on

pol i nators. Al aska's primary pollinators are native
bunbl e bees; the diversity of native bees in Alaska is
ast oni shi ng. About 4,000 different species have been
cataloged in North Anerica, and of those, 49 are found
in Al aska. Bunbl e bees are the nost prom nent of
those and are excellent pollinators, especially of
Al aska's berry species .... More than 9 mllion
Eur opean honeybees are inported into Al aska each year
for honey production. These bees play a significant

role in pollinating Alaska's crops and wldlands.
Al askan beekeepers are starting to overw nter bees in
order to devel op heartier Al askan bee stock.

Bee popul ati ons have been in an alarm ng decline since
2006, in many parts of the world. For the first tinme
this year, a bunble bee species in the United States
was decl ared endangered by the U S. Fish and Wldlife
Servi ce. W despread use of a relatively new class of
toxic pesticide, neonicotinoids, 1is a significant
contributing factor. In addition to Kkilling bees
outright, research has shown that even |ow |evels of
neoni cotinoids inpair bees' ability to find their way
back to the hive, collect food, produce new queens,
and nount an effective imune response.

This legislation would protect both agriculture and
wild plants that rely on pollinators. The bill ains

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2017



to prevent the spread of these pesticides before they

i npact Al askan agriculture. Over two-thirds of the
farmers involved with the Alaska Gown program
grow crops that depend on bees for pollination. So
in spirit of Co-Chair Tarr's third annual Food
Security Wek, we introduce this bill, not only to

protect Alaska's pollinators but to protect Alaska's
growi ng agricultural industry.

2:09: 37 PM

CO- CHAIR TARR noved to adopt the proposed commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 19, Version 30-LS0219\D, Nauman, 3/8/17, as the
wor ki ng docunent .

CO- CHAI R JOSEPHSON obj ected for discussion purposes.
2:10: 03 PM

JOANNA SCHULTZ, Staff, Representative Harriett Drunmond, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Drumond, prine
sponsor of HB 19, infornmed the commttee the main difference
between the original version of the bill and Version D is that
under Version D, if [neonicotinoid] pesticides are used, then
[the treated seeds, foliage, or soil], nust remain in the

greenhouse for the remainder of their |ife span. I n addition,
the bill exenpts certified pesticide applicators and allows
certified pesticide "users" to continue using pesticides outside
or inside a greenhouse. In response to Co-Chair Josephson, she

clarified that [under Version D], anything the pesticides have
been used on nust stay in a greenhouse.

2:11: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER said he has heard that bees are dying
around the world and he asked whether there is evidence that is
currently happening in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVWMOND replied that it is not happening in
Al aska yet, because the neonicotinoid class of pesticides is not

widely used in Alaska at this tinme. The goal of the proposed
legislation is to prevent the bees in Alaska, which are nostly
wild pollinators, from being inpacted by the use of

neoni coti noi d pesti ci des.

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER questioned how bee activity is recorded
in Al aska.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND answered through the Departnent of
Envi ronnent al Conservati on

2:13: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER restated his question as to how the
state will know whether the use of the pesticide has affected
bees in Al aska.

2:13: 58 PM

CHRI STI NA CARPENTER, Director, Division of Environnental Health

Department of Environnmental Conservation (DEC), answered that
DEC is not directly tracking bee kill-off in Al aska, but the
departnment works with its counterparts in other states to track
those bee kill-offs throughout the nation and also works wth
the U S. Environnental Protection Agency (EPA).

2:14: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WESTLAKE asked whether there are any unintended
consequences Ms. Carpenter has seen in other states from using
neoni coti noi d pesti ci des.

M5. CARPENTER offered to provide the commttee wth sone
exanpl es.

2:16: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND concl uded her presentation of HB 19 by
warning that the legislature needs to stop the spread of
neoni cotinoid pesticides to prevent their wdespread use in
Al aska.

2:16: 23 PM

CO CHAI R JOSEPHSON observed the bill directs that the use of the
pesticides would have to be entirely within a greenhouse and
whatever is being grown would have to stay in the greenhouse.
He asked, "Is the idea that if a private person wants to take a
risk with exposure, that's up to the individual ?"

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND i ndi cated yes. She clarified that the
bill references comrercial greenhouses and pointed out it is
unknown whet her seedlings comng up fromthe Lower 48 have been
pretreated with neonicotinoids. Large home inprovenent stores

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2017



and stores such as Fred Meyer, sell thousands of seedlings that
are grown el sewhere, and Al aska has no control over how they've
been treated unless they cone from a state that forbids the use
of neonicoti noi ds. Furthernore, sonme states nay not forbid use
in a greenhouse where sone seedlings are started; the goal of
the legislation is to keep use of the pesticides from spreadi ng
in Al aska. Representative Drummond expl ained that use by an
individual in his/her own backyard may not seem significant;
however, bees spend the summer in her backyard and she does not
want to expose them to neonicotinoids. Representati ve Drummond
described the legislation as a contribution to a nuch |arger
effort.

2:18: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARISH asked where else this ban has been
enforced, and to what effect.

M5. SCHULTZ offered her understanding that Mryl and passed a ban
| ast year that focuses on the restriction of sales rather than
on usage, and the state will allow existing products to be sold
for two years before the ban takes full effect. In addition,
certain cities have enacted bans, for exanple, Portland and
Eugene, Oregon, and Spokane, Washi ngton.

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked whether there have been any efforts
i nternationally.

M5. SCHULTZ said the European Union, in 2013, enacted a ban and
has been reviewi ng the ban either |ast year or this year.

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked whether the European Union has seen
any effects on the bee popul ation since enacting the ban.

MS. SCHULTZ said she has not seen studies but surmsed that is

because they are still in the process of being conducted. She
added, "But that was the goal of the ... ban, so that they could
really see if it ... made a difference."”

2:20: 09 PM

CO CHAI R JOSEPHSON expressed his understanding that M nnesota is
a cutting-edge jurisdiction, in ternms of banning some of these
pesti ci des. He asked whether other states ban at |east sone
cl asses of pesticides.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 17, 2017



M5. SCHULTZ agreed M nnesota has been working on sone related
| egislation, but only Maryland passed legislation to ban the
sale of neonicotinoids, [with the exenption to] certified
pestici de applicators.

2:20: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH inquired as to the availability of the
neoni coti noi d pesti ci des.

2:21: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVMOND advi sed [neonicotinoid pesticides] are
already available in the retail market. She said she is unsure
whet her or how pr of essi onal applicators are usi ng
[ neoni coti noi d] pesti ci des. She related that her staff
contacted all the growers in Alaska that were available for
comment and none of them are using [neonicotinoid pesticides].
Not wi t hst andi ng that, she remarked that anyone can go to [Al aska
MIl Feed & Garden Center] and purchase products that include
neoni coti noi d pesti ci des.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if there is a brand nanme to | ook for
inthe list of ingredients on a particular product.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVWMOND answered that there are a nunmber of
t hese cl asses of pesticides.

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH explained his consideration is for the
average custoner walking into a store to buy a pest killer, not
the professionals that "know what they're doing." He asked
again if there is a brand nane to identify.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND answered, "Bayer is one of them"” She
said that until she |earned about neonicotinoid pesticides, she
had been unaware she was applying them to her plants for many
years. She described the product as expensive - about $150 for

1.5 gallons. She said she limts her use of the product she
bought [containing neonicotinoid pesticides] to only when she
sees aphi ds. She expl ained that the products are not supposed

to be used when plants are flowering, because that is when bees
cone to the plants to pollenate them She said the average user
may not follow the rules, but comercial users are exenpt
because they are supposed to be applying the pesticide at the
appropriate tine in the plants' cycles.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 17, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if the pesticide used to obliterate
wasps can al so danage bees.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVMOND answered that she is not sure, but she
noted that there are some wasps in the pollinator class. She
added, "But if you're just attacking wasps, | can't imagine that
it's going to inpact flowers nearby."

2:25: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER questioned whether wasps, bees, and
bunbl ebees are all the sane classification of insect.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND sai d she doesn't know. Not wi t hst andi ng
that, she related that the 49 pollinators identified in Al aska
include not only bees of wvarious types, but also wasps and
certain varieties of flies.

2:27: 13 PM

ROB CARTER, Manager, Plant Materials Center (PMC), Division of
Agriculture, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), offered that
nost [pesticides], including neonicotinoid pesticides, are not
selective: "They will kill things.”" 1In response to a follow up
guestion from Representative Rauscher, he said he would not
state that the pesticides kill "all" insects. He said, "I wll
say that ... these do have significant inpact on a |I|arge
majority of the insects out there. That is their intention and
that is their use and why they were created."”

2:27:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER remarked that wasps eat aphids. He
offered his wunderstanding that wasps had been brought into
Al aska for that specific purpose. He asked, "So, if these are

on the plant, the aphids are there, and the wasp eats the aphid,
t hen what's the deal ?"

2:27:56 PM

MR. CARTER answered that wasps and bees are in the sanme ki ngdom
phylum and <class, but are in a different suborder. He
confirmed there are parasitic wasps that attack aphids. He said
[ neoni cotinoid pesticides] also kill aphids, but he does not
know if a wasp would be affected by eating an aphid that had fed
on a plant that had been treated with a neoni cotinoid pesticide.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2017



2:29:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WESTLAKE sai d he applauds HB 19, but he expressed
concern about wunintended consequences. He questioned whet her
the proposed legislation mght result in a situation in which
there are trees along a highway being killed by pests, but "we
can't do anything about it."

2: 30: 32 PM

M5. SCHULTZ pointed out that Version D would not ban the
application of neoni cot i noi d pesti ci des by certified
applicators, which generally would be the ones treating a pest
i nvasi on al ongsi de a hi ghway.

2:31: 06 PM

CO- CHAIR TARR noted that she is a botanist who has worked on
this issue for about 20 years. She opined that the changes in
Version D are reasonabl e, because nost of the concern about the
application of [neonicotinoid pesticides] is in regard to those
i ndi vidual s who are untrained and over apply the product or use

it under the wong conditions. Limting the wuse of
neoni cotinoid pesticides to comercially trained applicators
manages "inproper application in the environment" as well as

protecting the applicators from any unnecessary exposure.
2:32:01 PM

CO- CHAIR JOSEPHSON expressed his support of HB 19 and his
concern regarding the health of the bee population in the U S
He stated his assunption that the proposed |egislation pertains
to healthy ecosystens, but surmised it my also |link to economc
systens in Al aska. He asked the bill sponsor to explain "why
bees are inportant in that respect.”

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND answered that over two-thirds of the
farmers in the Alaska Gown program depend upon bees to
pollinate their crops. She reenphasized the proportion of the
world's food that relies on pollination. She stated, "There are
billions of bees that are bred and noved around in the world of
agriculture to be there at the appropriate tinme for pollinating
those particular crops. It's a huge industry in the Lower 48."

CO CHAIR JOSEPHSON drew attention to the fiscal note. He noted
that he is not a |egislator who subscribes to the idea that in

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2017



tough fiscal tines no |legislation should ever cost anything. He
invited the bill sponsor to coment on the fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND replied that she is having difficulty
believing that DEC needs "one entire person to track a single
pesticide” when it is already tracking a nunber of other
chem cal s. She added, "But it's hard for me to question the
professionals in this manner."

2:34: 04 PM

M5. SCHULTZ pointed out that the fiscal note aligns with the
original bill version; therefore, it does not include "the
certified applicators piece.” She said, "That may and should

| ower the fiscal note."
2:34: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH questioned why the bill sponsor chose to
focus on the application rather than sale of [neonicotinoid
pesti ci des]. He said studies have shown that [neonicotinoid
pesticides] can also kill birds and potentially mammuals and
fish, as well.

2:35: 00 PM

CO CHAIR TARR, based on her experience with simlar |egislation
in the past, inparted that "you cannot ban the sale, because it
violates the U S. Constitution Interstate Commerce Cl ause."” The
choice, she explained, is to limt how the product is used in
Al aska.

2:35: 27 PM

CO CHAIR JOSEPHSON noted that |ast year, on the federal |evel
there was a "fairly controversial" bipartisan effort regarding
"further restrictions on chem cals and that sort of thing."

MS. SCHULTZ, after ascertaining that Co-Chair Josephson had been
referring to Maryland, offered her understanding that "they have
restricted where you can purchase these pesticides; so, you can
purchase neonicotinoid pesticides where you can also purchase
restricted use pesticides." She said she is not aware of any
stores in Alaska that "strictly sell restricted use pesticides."

2:36:26 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- March 17, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER nentioned that beekeepers are concerned
about [neonicotinoid pesticides], and he said he wants to learn
as nmuch as possible about the issue before voting on the
proposed | egislation. He referred to reading nmaterial that
states that a single kernel of corn treated with neonicotinoid
pesticides can kill a songbird that ingests it and "as little as
one-tenth of a coated kernel seed per day during egg-Ilaying
season can inpair reproduction..." He questioned how weat her
such as rain or snow may affect the strength or neonicotinoid
pesticides on plants and whether there could be runoff that
could affect other plants.

M5. SCHULTZ stated that she is not an expert. Not wi t hst andi ng
that, she offered her understanding that the chem cals enter the
plant and end up in the pollen that is collected by the bees.

2:39: 35 PM

CO- CHAIR JOSEPHSON inparted to anyone curious about the issue
that the proper federal Ilaw to look at 1is the Federa
| nsecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), which he
offered his understanding had not recently been anended. He
added, "It was TOSCA, which was the Toxic Chem cals Act that was
just...”

CO CHAI R JOSEPHSON opened public testinony on HB 19.
2:40: 14 PM

DAVI D OTNESS expressed appreciation that the issue before the
commttee is being addressed. He opined that the onus should be
on the manufacturers of pesticides to first prove that they are
not harnful. He said [neonicotinoid pesticides] have been
linked as the source of "nmassive die-offs.” He characterized
neoni cotinoid pesticides as a powerful poison, and he offered
his understanding that they are derived from the tobacco plant,

which in itself is a powerful drug. He concluded, "Before
things get to the point where there could be conflicts of people
wanting to use this on a commercial scale, | think it's

excellent that we address it proactively right now and sort of
take that attitude with nuch of what we're facing ahead of us
her e. I think it would ... clarify a lot of things for the
public, and al so those who m ght want to use it to begin with."

2:42: 15 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 17, 2017



LOUS TQZZI noted that he had sent an e-mail to the commttee,
but would address a few inportant points today. Regardi ng the
t hreat neonicotinoid pesticides have on bees, he explained that
t he biggest issue is that neonicotinoid pesticides are system c;
all tissue of the plants - including the nectar and pollen -
pick up and retain the pesticides, which "makes the plant itself
a pesticide." Bees gather nectar, which has |ow |evels of the
pesticide, but in the process of making honey from that nectar
wat er evapor at es, which essentially has the effect of
concentrating [the neonicotinoid pesticides]. M. Tozzi advised
t hat because neonicotinoid pesticides are long-lived, they tend
to last in the plant for the entire life of the plant. He said,
"So while applying them when the plant is bloonmng is an issue,
it ... could have been applied nmuch sooner than that and it
still presents an inpact to the honey bees."

MR, TQZZI directed attention to |language in the bill that read,
"applied to the soil in granular forni. He advised this is a
big problem because "it creates a |oophole where a farner who
purchases ... or greenhouse person who purchases treated seed
from ... outside of Alaska could potentially plant that seed
out doors. " He explained this possibility would exist because
the bill language, in only specifying granular form would not
prevent "a liquid or a seed with a treatnent on it."

MR. TQZZI suggested another possible issue is that after
application, these chemicals wll often "drift out”™ as a dry
residue to areas beyond the intended farm fields, and the
neoni cotinoid pesticides are readily picked up by the indigenous
plants in the adjacent countryside.

2:46: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked what M. Tozzi's credentials are
regardi ng [ neoni cotinoid pesticides].

MR. TQzZZI answered that he is a beekeeper and part of a group of
beekeepers working to breed an Alaska-hardy bee so that

beekeeping in Alaska can be nore sustainable. He said bees
overwinter in Al aska, but not wthout much intervention on the
part of beekeepers. He concluded, "And so, | don't have
scientific background other than what | need to know as a
beekeeper."
2:47. 43 PM

The conmttee took a brief at-ease at 2:48 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 17, 2017



2:48: 20 PM

CO CHAI R JOSEPHSON i ndicated that he would like to hear from M.
Carpenter regarding M. Tozzi's coment that treated seeds could
be placed outside and thus circunvent a prohibition on the
granul ar form of [neonicotinoid pesticides].

2:48: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER, regarding the systemic nature of
[ neoni cotinoid pesticides], said he would like to know if there
are other pesticides that are also [systemc]. He further
questioned if the coments about [neonicotinoid pesticides]
becom ng part of honey could also apply to other pesticides.

2:49: 38 PM
M5. CARPENTER offered to follow up with information
2:50: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH said he has friends in Fairbanks that are
beekeepers and under st ands t he bi ggest chal | enge in
overwintering the bees is in keeping themfed. He asked if bees
are nore resistant to one pesticide over another or whether the
problem with the neonicotinoid pesticides is that they are
| onger |ived.

2:51:17 PM

MR TQZZI answered that "the pesticides"” are long-lived and w |
| ast through winter after being brought back to the hive. He
reiterated his explanation about the evaporation of water from
the honey resulting in a nore concentrated |evel of pesticide.
He said one theory as to the m d-w nter disappearance of bees in
the Lower 48 is that the bees, having ingested the pesticide,
which is a neurotoxin, "lose track of where they're supposed to
be and what they're supposed to be doing and then fly off in the
m ddl e of winter." M. Tozzi said he has heard anecdotally of
t hat happening in Al aska, but he said he cannot say that is what
the cause was. M. Tozzi noted that the pesticides are also
stored in the beeswax, which is an economc factor, because
"clean beeswax is sonething that's very difficult to cone by."
He said the ongoing low level [of pesticides] to the colonies
makes it nmuch nore difficult for themto survive the w nter.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- March 17, 2017



2:53:59 PM

PAMELA K. MLLER, Biologist and Executive D rector, Al aska
Community Action on Toxics (ACAT), had her witten testinony
par aphrased by Patti J. Saunders. Ms. Mller's testinony - a
letter to Representative Drummond dated March 15, 2017

[included in the commttee packet] - read as follows [origina

punct uati on provided]:

| am witing on behalf of Alaska Community Action on
Toxics, a statewide non-profit environmental health
research and advocacy organi zation. Thank you for your

i ntroduction of HB 19, "An  Act limting the
application of neonicotinoid pesticides.” W strongly
endorse this bill as an inportant mnmeasure to protect

bees and other pollinators so crucial to a mgjority of
our crops that serve as vital food resources.
Neoni cotinoid pesticides have |ong been associated
with harmto bees and other pollinators. In 2016, the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) released the
first risk assessnent of neonicotinoid pesticides and
concluded that they can cause significant harm to
honeybees. | ncr easi ng i ndependent peer-revi ened
scientific evi dence has denonstr at ed t hat t he
wi despread use of the dangerous class of neonicotinoid
pesticides is a factor in the precipitous decline of
bees and other pollinators. Studies have shown serious

adverse effects to bees including navigational
ability, nmobi lity, and reproduction. Even smal

exposures to neonicotinoid pesticides can danage bees’
ability to gather pollen, inpair their nenory and

soci al behavior, weaken their inmune systens, and harm
colony health and longevity. Scientists have shown
that exposure to certain neonicotinoid pesticides
reduces bees’ immune defenses, pronoting infections
associated with such diseases as deforned w ng virus.
Recent scientific studies have shown that chronic
exposure of honeybees to environmental |evels of
neoni cotinoid pesticides can inpair their |earning and
menory. Another study reported that wild bees exposed
to neonicotinoid-coated seeds had reduced nesting and

were not successful in building brood cells for new
|arvae. In addition, chronic exposure to one of the
nost comonl y used neoni cot i noi d pesti ci des

(i mdacloprid) was found to be associated with reduced
brood production, reduced colony growh, and an 85%
reduction in the production of bunblebee queens.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 17, 2017



Neoni cotinoid pesticides are also found to have
adverse effects on many other non-t ar get and
beneficial organisnms, including butterflies, birds,
and aquatic insects. There are also energing concerns
about the possible adverse neurodevel opnental effects
of neonicotinoid pesticides on children. W believe
the evidence supports the need for urgent |egislative
action. W urge swift passage of this bill to suspend
t he use of these harnful chemcals in Al aska.

2:57:40 PM

REPRESENTATIVE BIRCH asked how w despread [neonicotinoid
pesticides] are commercially conpared to other pesticides.

PATTI J. SAUNDERS, Devel opnent Director, Alaska Community Action
on Toxics (ACAT), answered that they are commonly avail abl e, but
she has not done the research yet to know the percentages. She
stated, "Just reading the label isn't necessarily going to help
peopl e, because this class of pesticides is not |abeled as a

class.” For exanple, soneone might see "imdacloprid® may be on
the label, but sonmeone reading that may not realize that it is
[a neonicotinoid pesticide that is killing bees]. She said

education of both sellers and consuners is necessary. She said
she thinks there is already a lot of concern anong regarding
neoni cotinoid pesticides, and she surm sed that Al askans would
wel come nore information about "these endocrine disrupting
pesticides.”

2:59:34 PM
CO CHAI R JOSEPHSON renoved his objection to the previous notion
to adopt the proposed conmittee substitute (CS) for HB 19,
Version 30-LS0219\D, Nauman, 3/8/17, as the working docunent.
There being no further objection, Version D was before the
conmittee.
2:59: 50 PM

CO CHAIR JOSEPHSON closed public testimony on HB 19 and
announced that HB 19 was hel d over.

3: 00: 08 PM
CO CHAI R JOSEPHSON handed the gavel to Co-Chair Tarr.

HB 46- PROCURE AK FI SH AG PRCOD.; ALASKA GROMN

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 17, 2017



3:00: 53 PM

CO CHAI R TARR announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 46, "An Act relating to the state and rmuni ci pal
procurenent preferences for agricultural products harvested in
the state and fisheries products harvested or processed in the
state; relating to the sale of mlk, mlk products, raw mlKk,
and raw m | k products; and providing for an effective date."

3:01: 00 PM

CO- CHAI R TARR opened public testinony on HB 46.

3:01: 28 PM

JOHN ANDERSON expressed appreciation to the commttee for its
interest in agriculture. He said he had concerns about the
proposed | egislation. He related that he is a |Ilivestock
producer and "HB 46 is a good attenpt at a futile process that
soneone like nyself can't touch.™ He stated that while there
may be a small trickledown effect, [the proposed |egislation]
would benefit just a few farnmers. He explained that

unfortunately he could not touch a price point anywhere close to
15 percent.

MR. ANDERSON said another issue is in determning what wll be
consi dered "Al aska G own." He questioned whether animls would
be allowed to be brought to Al aska and sl aughtered the next day
and qualify for marketing at the 15 percent increase or if it
will be held to the high standard of Al aska G own, which is that
the animal [has been in Alaska] for 51 percent of its life. He
predicted that if inported aninmals are "allowed to be consi dered
to this standard wthout any check," then "certain producers

will take advantage of bottom floor cattle and hog prices -
especially in Canada right now - and wal k away naking |ots of
gui ck bucks and having an al nost zero inpact in our state."” He

i ndi cated that those producers would not be buying grain or hay
in substantial anounts; therefore, he questioned the worth of a
program that of which people can take advant age.

MR. ANDERSON nentioned the (indisc.), on which he is a nenber,
is thriving; however, he cautioned the commttee that he has
wi tnessed many instances of disregard for the rules and the

intentional m slabeling of products. He said he has brought
many of his concerns to the Division of Agriculture, and "they
do not feel they can protect the |Iogo anynore.” He said because

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- March 17, 2017



the division will no longer investigate "wongdoings," sone
[ producers] have started new |abels, such as "Golden Heart
Gown" in the Interior and "G ow Palner" in Palner, Al aska.

CO CHAIR TARR, as prine sponsor of HB 46, informed M. Anderson
that under current statute, the percentage is 7 percent. She
surmsed that if the [proposed] 15 percent would not allow M.
Anderson an opportunity, then the existing 7 percent certainly

woul d not, because it is over 50 percent |ess. She said she
under stands t hat while the proposed <change is a "big
i nprovenent,” it wll not accommobdate everyone. She i ndicated

her understandi ng of the challenges of being a small producer of
| ivestock or produce. She explained her commtnent to continue
wor ki ng beyond the opportunity proposed under HB 46 "to support
things that will allow nore opportunity for a small producer
i ke yourself.” She indicated that the reason she supported the
M. MKinley Meat Processing Facility was so that people such as
M. Anderson could have the opportunity to get into the market.

CO CHAIR TARR, regarding the issue of "Alaska Gown," said, "W
woul d anticipate using the same Alaska Gown rule and standard
that's in place now " Not wi t hstandi ng that, she acknow edged
t he concern raised by M. Anderson regarding i nported ani mal s.

3:06:31 PM

DAVID OTNESS testified that he liked the sentinent behind [HB
46] and wants Alaska to develop nobre intrastate commerce. He
said he would hold back fromoffering further testinony until he
got "up to speed"” on [the proposed |egislation].

3:07:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH questi oned whet her the statenent nade by a
previous testifier - that animals could be inported one day,
sl aughtered the next, and narketed as Al aska Gown - was
accur at e.

3:07:56 PM

JOHANNA  HERRON, Devel opnent Speci al i st I, Division of

Agriculture, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), responded
that that is not current practice. She said, "The certification

policy that was passed in previous years states clearly ... that
Iivestock must be raised 51 percent of its life or nore in the
state to be marketed as Al aska G own." She said there have been

a couple instances where "that has been chall enged and concerns

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 17, 2017



have been raised, and ... we investigate ... as we hear of
t hose. ™

3:08:35 PM

CO CHAIR TARR, after ascertaining that there was no one el se who
wished to testify, <closed public testinony on HB 46. In
response to Representative Rauscher, she stated her intent for
the commttee to nove HB 46 that day.

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER noted that his district reaches Pal ner,
G ennallen, Delta, and Valdez, and it contains a |ot of cultural
land and |ivestock. He requested HB 46 be held for another
hearing so that he would have tinme to speak to his constituent
farnmers.

3:10: 15 PM

CO- CHAIR TARR said she does not mnd honoring that request, but
she indicated it could result in the commttee having to neet in
the evenings to catch up on its workload. She pointed out that
she has been working on "this particular product preference
statute"” since 2014 and has presented information at several
"farm bureau neetings,” working closely wth mnmany of the
i ndividual s in Representative Rauscher's district.

3:11:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER expressed his appreciation for the work
that has been done thus far, and he maintained his desire to
have nore tinme with HB 46.

3:11: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WESTLAKE suggested that Representative Rauscher
could talk to soneone within the Division of Agriculture who may
be stationed in Representative Rauscher's district.

3:12:10 PM

CO CHAIR TARR expressed her hope that Representative Rauscher
could get the answers he needed either from division staff or
his constituents.

3:13: 03 PM

CO- CHAI R TARR announced that HB 46 was hel d over.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- March 17, 2017



HB 172-1 NDUSTRI AL HEMP PRODUCTI ON LI CENSES

3:13: 07 PM

CO CHAI R TARR announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 172, "An Act relating to the regulation and
production of industrial henp; relating to industrial henp pil ot
prograns; providing that industrial henp is not included in the
definition of 'marijuana'; and clarifying that adding industrial
henmp to food does not create an adulterated food product.™

3:13: 11 PM
CO CHAI R TARR opened public testinony on HB 172.
3:13:21 PM

DAVID OTNESS testified that he thinks it is inportant that "we
expand into a hardy crop that has so many applications and none
of the negatives fornerly associated with it." He opined that
there is potential in Alaska for those wlling to remain in the
state "through thick and thin," and he renmarked that what the
state is about to endure is "the thin."

MR. OINESS said [HB 172] should give people "a good neans of
suppl ementing their existing operations and perhaps incentivize

others to ... start up."” He said [henp] seens to have
"unlimted potential™ and is a hardy plant that should thrive
with [Al aska's] daylight hours. He concluded, "I just heartily
endorse the idea of our agriculture expanding this direction."”
3:14: 42 PM

JACK BENNETT, Al aska Representati ve, | ndustri al Henp
Manuf acturing, LLC (IHM, testified that industrial henp is not
"a marijuana issue" - it is an agricultural issue. He
encouraged the commttee to "rethink the way we think about
hemp." M. Bennett stated, "My conpany ... [is] North America's
| ar gest . It has the capability of producing 40 mllion pounds
annually and it's ... devoted ... to the oil well conpanies, to
help Alaskan fluids engineers drill faster, lighter, and
cheaper."

MR. BENNETT said all of the conpany's fiber is sold to an
autonotive partner in Indiana that rmanufactures Anerican
autonobiles with bio-conposites, henp plastics, which he said

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- March 17, 2017



are stronger than fiberglass on a boat [and nore] flexible than
a formul a one race car.

MR. BENNETT said he has presented [henp] to the mlitary as a
remedi ati on product that replaces polypropylene boons in the
water, is five tinmes nore absorbent, and rather than ending up

in a land fill turns into an energy source. He said, "That
remedi ati on product, through these plant fiber technol ogies, are
also ... applied in the soil in the granular form to renedi ate
| and inpacted by crude [oil], chem cals, radiation - what have

you - within 90 days."

MR. BENNETT shared that he is building a nodel hone in Honer,
Al aska, as an affordabl e housing sol ution. He said, "There are

6,000 unit shortages in rural Al aska." He relayed that 22,000
acres [of henp grown] in one season produce 6,000 hones that are
1,000 square feet in size. M. Bennett concluded, "It doesn't

matter how green it is; at the end of the day, we're all here to
make noney."

3:17: 06 PM

MR.  BENNETT, in response to questions from Representative
Rauscher, inparted that the equipnment used by |IHM costs $30
mllion and there are only five nade: two in France, two in

South Africa, and one in North Carolina. He said the conpany
works with farners in Alaska "to collect the material devoted to
remedi ation and oil and gas industries in Al aska."

3:18: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked, "Where do you get your henp from
now to be a head manufacturer incorporated?”

MR. BENNETT answered that North Carolina is currently "shaping"
its regulations and policies. He said 7,000 acres of industria
henp is needed in order to produce 40 mllion annually and his
"counterparts” are |looking to purchase 14,000 acres, because the
machi nery "has the ability to expand to 80 mllion pounds.” He
i ndicated that the conpany is currently using kenaf, which is a
menber of the hibiscus famly. He indicated the U S. Navy had
studied the high absorbency of kenaf in use as a renediation
product, and he stated that henp is even nore absorbent. He
i ndicated that I HM uses kenaf as an alternative to henp.

MR. BENNETT, in response to Representative Rauscher, said kenaf
is growm in "the tobacco belt,” in Georgia and North Carolina

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- March 17, 2017



To a foll owup question, M. Bennett inforned the commttee that
kenaf is a legal product used in the autonotive industry [in
t he] manuf acture of autonotive parts. The [autonotive]
conpanies are transitioning out of kenaf [use] into the use of
i ndustrial henp, because the latter has "nore val ue-added
products. "

3:20: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH offered his understanding that M. Bennett
had inplied that his organization is prepared to nake a
substantial investnment in Al aska. He asked M. Bennett if that
estimation is accurate and what the dollar anmount m ght be.

MR. BENNETT responded that he "has presented to many oil well

drilling companies in Alaska." He stated, "This is an energent
technology that helps the fluids engineer, and this is what

they'Il use for now on. That industry alone - that nud additive

- is a billion-dollar industry annually."

3:21:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH of fered his understanding that M. Bennett
had said IMH is considering "bringing a plant to Al aska." He
asked how quickly "we" could expect to see "nobre substantive
investnment" from M. Barrett's organization if the proposed
| egi sl ati on was nade | aw t onorr ow.

MR. BENNETT answered, "Baby steps." He said once |legislation
passes, the conpany would hel p Al aska acquire [equipnent], while
not as expensive as the $30 mllion ones previously nentioned

sonmething that will work in Alaska in a centralized |ocation
accessible to farners.

3:22:29 PM
VWES SCHACHT, Al aska Cannabi s Advocacy, spoke to the long history

of henp being grown in American agriculture even before the
inception of [the United States]. He shared that both sides of

his ancestry raised henp. He stated, "It's also helped the
Ameri can econony off and on for years - Revolutionary War, Givi
War - it was required by every farner over five acres of land to

rai se one acre of industrial henp, and to outlaw it and not have
its production is ludicrous."

MR. SCHACHT said there are many uses for henp, including [the
prevention of] soil erosion, the use of its fibers for building

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- March 17, 2017



materials, the use of its oil "for everything fromedible oil to
bird seed.™ He wurged everyone to read a panphlet about
industrial henp [included in the commttee packet] to learn
about the product. He stated, "I find it really inane that
we're allowed to grow psychoactive cannabis but not industrial
hemp. " He indicated that [the worst thing that could result]
from snoking henp is "a headache or sore |ungs."

3:23: 57 PM

CO- CHAIR TARR commented on the historical aspect of agriculture
and its renai ssance.

3:24:57 PM
CO- CHAIR TARR cl osed public testinony on HB 172.
3:25:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER prefaced his query by stating that he is
not "against this bill." He then asked for confirmation that
the Division of Agriculture would "draw the regul ations.”

3:27: 00 PM

ROBERT CARTER, WManager, Plant Materials Center (PMC), Division
of Agriculture, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), answered
that it is DNRs intent to draft the regulations that would be
needed upon passage of HB 172 to "make this a sustainable
program for ... those interested all around the state of
Al aska." He indicated that because [industrial henp] is "guilty
by association®™ wth recreational marijuana, the departnent
wants to ensure a good foundation so that the industrial henp
i ndustry can grow.

3:28: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked for coment regarding the three
zero fiscal notes.

3:29:42 PM

PATRI CK FI TZGERALD, Staff, Representative Harriet Drunmond,
Al aska State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Drunmond,
prime sponsor of HB 172, acknow edged that one of the fiscal
notes states that the proposed legislation would regulate
i ndustri al henp through the Departnent of Envi r onnent al

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- March 17, 2017



Conservation (DEC). He explained that that was a m stake and

when corrected, there will still be three zero fiscal notes, but
the [corrected] fiscal note will reflect that "the regul ations
will be under the Division of Agriculture."

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER indicated that he would like to hear
from the division, because "we're looking for something else
here."

3:30:41 PM

CO- CHAIR TARR suggested that the drafting of regulations is
sonmething that [the Division of Agriculture] does within its
"existing scope of work."

MR. CARTER responded, "Wnderfully said." He added that from
the standpoint of PMC, once a crop has been deened agricultural,
it becomes the purview of the Division of Agriculture, which
takes on the responsibility of supporting agricultural industry
in Al aska.

3:32:22 PM
REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH cited | anguage at the top of page 3, of HB

172, which says that "the state may create and adm nister an
agricultural pilot program to study growth, cultivation and

mar keting of industrial henp." He suggested it nmay be useful to
set a fee schedule to finance such a pilot program "so that we
coul d be doing research as we're ... charging forward,"

3:33:18 PM

MR. FI TZGERALD responded, "That's the idea of the pilot
program "

CO CHAIR TARR asked M. Fitzgerald if he meant that [the pilot
program would be "sel f-funded through the fees."

MR, FI TZGERALD confirned that "the fees would ... produce the
funds in order to conduct the studies through ... [the pilot
program ."

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH of fered his understanding that there would
be allowance for regulating the industry, but not for the pilot
pr ogr am

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- March 17, 2017



MR. FI TZGERALD responded, "I wll take a look at the Section
76.06 of the farmbill, and I will follow up with that."

3:34: 13 PM

CO CHAI R TARR reopened public testinony on HB 172.

3:34:18 PM

GEORGE PIERCE recommended the conmttee take a look at a web
site, called "information distillery." He said [industrial
hemp] is not like marijuana; it cannot nmke someone high. He

advised the commttee that henp is one of the nost useful plants
on earth, wth the followng attributes: the ability to enrich
the soil where it is grown; seeds that are an excellent source
of mnerals, protein, and dietary fiber; and a source of all
essential fatty and am no aci ds.

MR. PIERCE noted that many individuals eat fish as a source of
essenti al fats, but because of concern about commerci al
overfishing and possible chem cal contam nants, many have chosen
to switch to henp. He said henp is also good for aninmals and
can be used for body care and papernaking. He relayed that the
first Anerican Flag was nmade from henp. M. Pierce said henp is
al so good for: fiber, textile, rope, petroleum and to "replace
gasoline for diesel engines." He called the product "amazing."

MR. PIERCE restated the safe nature of henp and repeated his
recommendati on about the information distillery. He noted that
henp is a renewable resource, as well as being a source of
i ncone, of which he said the state is in need.

COCHAIR TARR said that as a botanist, she is famliar with the
many uses of henp, and she expressed appreciation to M. Pierce
for his coments.

3:37:39 PM

ED MARTIN, JR said he currently owns property in Sterling
Al aska, which would be available for growing both marijuana and
henp; however, he pointed out that he and his wife are not
allowed to get a license to grow in Al aska, because although
t hey have been residents in Alaska for many years, they do not
apply for the Al aska Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD). He
expressed hope that there would not be "a requirenent for a
protection racket in the industry to just Al askans" under HB

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- March 17, 2017



172. He said he had pleaded with the legislature to review
adm nistrative regulations related to marijuana | aw.

MR. MARTIN said there is a distinction between [marijuana |aw
and law pertaining to henp] and both are "revenue getters" for
Al aska. He tal ked about the efforts on the House floor to state
spendi ng. He indicated that the sale of land could result in
the ability to grow nore product and create both jobs and
revenue for the state. He said nmany |egislators "voted against
cutting governnent,"” and he urged |egislators to "be responsible
and create an industry that'll create revenue for the state.”

MR. MARTIN expl ained that he has to be out of state during the
wi nter for nmedical reasons but is "every bit of an Al askan" and
will defend [the state's] constitution and individual and
property rights. He urged the commttee, "Please |look at this."

CO- CHAIR TARR said the reason the commttee is hearing HB 172 is
that it would provide an opportunity for Alaska. She noted that

followng the bill hearing, the commttee would segue into a
presentation related to access to agricultural |and. She
offered her understanding that Representative Talerico had
introduced a bill on the topic of getting nore Al askans access

to sone of the state-owned | and.

3:41:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVMOND asked M. Martin to expound on his
comment about Ilicenses being limted to residents of Al aska.
She said she knows that licenses for marijuana businesses have

been Iimted to Al askans, because "the departnent is trying to
keep outside influence out of our local marijuana business.™

3:41: 56 PM

MR. MARTIN responded that when regulations were passed for
marijuana growh or sale, there was a requirenent that [growers
and sellers] nust be PFD applicants. He said he and his wfe
left Alaska in 2004, but he reenphasized his commtnent to
Al aska. He indicated that he had served in the mlitary and was
involved in rebuilding training facilities in Hawaii. He said
he has no desire to live year-round in Al aska any nore, but he
cl ai med that does not make him any | ess Al askan.

MR. MARTIN said under current law pertaining to PFD

qualifications, [Al askan residents] are allowed to be out of the
state for six nmonths. He indicated that representatives working

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- March 17, 2017



for the Al aska Permanent Fund Division inforned him that he

could "go back to 2006 and naybe apply for that." He said he
doesn't necessarily wsh to do that, but he is being barred from
entering into business in Al aska. He said he is "somewhat

upset” about Representative Mke Chenault having worked to do
away with the Admnistrative Review Committee, because "you
folks should be reviewing those regulations to see how they

violate people like my wife and our individual l|iberty to be in
business in our own state." He said he and his wife pay taxes
in both Alaska and Hawaii, but his heart is and always wll be

in Al aska. He urged the committee not to pass |egislation that
woul d bar himand his wife fromentering in to conrerce in their
own state.

3:44: 43 PM

CO CHAIR TARR re-cl osed public testinony on HB 172.

[HB 172 was hel d over.]

PRESENTATI ON(S) AGRI CULTURE ACTI VI TI ES | N ALASKA

3:44: 51 PM

CO CHAI R TARR announced that the next order of business would be
a presentation regarding agriculture activities in Al aska.

3:45: 25 PM

ARTHUR  KEYES, Acting Director, Division of Agriculture,
Department of Natural Resources, gave a presentation regarding
agricultural activities in Al aska. He listed sone of the
positive agriculture activities in Al aska: farmers market
gromh |eading the nation per capita and up from 13 markets in
2005 to 42 markets today; a thriving peony industry with "the
nunber of stenms exported exceeding expectations”; grain
producti on expanding statewide; rhodiola and hops growing in
popul arity and viability; and a "positive outlook in agriculture
right now in Al aska."

MR. KEYES noted that hops are an inportant conponent in brew ng
and are one of the fastest growng segnents in the food
i ndustry. He said Alaska-grown hops can garner $60-%$80 per
pound. He said hops is a cousin plant to marijuana and both
have "day-length issues.” The special greenhouses that allow
marij uana producers to control day length could be used to grow
a dwarf hops worth a considerable sum of noney. Regar di ng

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- March 17, 2017



livestock, he noted that "production is up." He reported that
Mount MKinley Mat & Sausage had one of its npbst successful
years, at "$77,000 ahead," and one of the reasons is that there
is a surge in livestock bei ng used.

3:48: 48 PM

VR. KEYES shared sone of his "goals and visions for
agriculture.” He said he would like to see inproved access to
agricultural lands for young farnmers, who nay have anple energy
but a paucity of funds, and to that end, the division has an
agricultural land sale program He shared that he is an
entrepreneur and farnmer, and he enphasized the inportance of
young people entering into farm ng.

MR. KEYES indicated that historically agricultural parcels are
at least 160 acres, and there is a requirenent that the farner
must clear 40 percent of the farmable soil. He said clearing
land is arduous. He said he is proposing a change in the
requirenent so that smaller agricultural pieces would abut
| arger agricultural pieces and be nade available for sale to
younger farmers to develop w thout going hundreds of thousands
of dollars in debt. Then, once the farners have devel oped the
| and, they could cone back to the division for nore |and, which
the division would have kept open, and the farners would be
given "a preference to expand their farminto that." M. Keyes
estimated the parcels would be about 10-20 acres in size. He
called this "a cultural shift" and said that "it will take years
to see the fruits of this."

3:51: 44 PM

MR. KEYES stated that he would like to see the division help
small farmers enter wholesale markets, including Safeway and
Fred Meyer. He said he personally junped through the hurdles to
enter retail stores as a wholesale producer, and it 1is
"“cunbersonme” and "frustrating." He offered his belief that the

division has the ability to help the farnmer in this process. He
said that farmers have the potential to nake "sone instant
retail noney" wth farners markets, and "as their operation
grows, that they would want access to that."

3:52:37 PM
MR. KEYES described sonme of the inportant activities in which

the division is involved to assist farmng in Al aska. He said
the Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund (ARLF) is nmanaged by the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- March 17, 2017



Board of Agriculture and Conservation. He related that the
af orenenti oned Munt MKinley Mat & Sausage facility falls
under the purview of ARLF, managed by the division. He said the
loan fund is nanaged by farnmers. Farmers sonetinmes have to
borrow noney for a few years in a row to get their initial crop
going, and M. Keyes said they are essentially spreading that
investment on the ground, with the collateral being the crop
that is being grown. He said typical bankers doing auto or
nmortgage loans nmay think that is absurd; therefore, it is
advant ageous to have farnmers on the board, who are uniquely
suited to review |l oan applications. The current default rate of
ARLF is "below the traditional banking standard," he said.

MR. KEYES stated that PMC provides certified, clean, disease-

free seed potatoes, grass seed, and grain seed. He descri bed
the facility as "one of the best kept secrets in Alaska." He
enphasized that the <center's work is inmportant and nust
continue, and he predicted that PMC will play a critical role.
3:55:43 PM

MR. KEYES stated his belief that as |long as people continue to
be concerned about their health and their famlies, "local
agriculture has a bright future.” He said agriculture is a

strategic industry. He offered his understanding that during a
presentation he had heard given by Bryce Wigley (ph), that nman
had said that when Hurricane Katrina occurred, it took tw weeks

to get food into [New Ol eans, Louisiana]. M. Keyes exclainmed
that "they're connected to Anerican” and "have one of the
| argest ports in the nation." He questioned, "If they went
through that in New Ol eans, what would we go through ... in a
time of crisis?" He stated that agriculture in Alaska is a

strategic, economc, health, and comunity issue.

MR. KEYES, in conclusion, stated, "Nothing has a greater inpact
on the quality of a person's life than the food they eat."

3:57:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked for information regarding farners
borrowi ng noney.

MR. KEYS responded that he has farmed successfully for 10 years
wi t hout borrowi ng noney, which he described as nore work but
with greater rewards. He indicated that the farnmers that borrow
nmoney range across all economc levels, and he knows sone smart
and successful farnmers whose plan includes borrowi ng every year.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -31- March 17, 2017



He stated that not everyone has to borrow noney, but it is a
resource that needs to be available, and he called the borrow ng
of noney a tool. In response to a followup question, he said
he has heard that borrow ng noney through a traditional bank can
be difficult, and currently there are three |ending agencies
within Al aska: the United States Departnent of Agriculture
(USDA), ARLF, and through private neans.

4:01: 06 PM

CO CHAIR TARR remarked that if it were easy to get a |oan, she
woul d be farm ng right now.

4.01:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WESTLAKE nentioned the term "uplift,” as it is
used in discussing "nere oil, rather than crude." He suggested
that if it is the state's land that is being sold [to farners],
then perhaps [the state] could consider uplift, in relation to

[farmers] "starting to buy the next piece of increnental.”
4:01: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND expressed appreciation for M. Keyes'
ent husiasm Regarding the revolving |oan fund, she asked if the
Al aska Commercial Agriculture and Fishing Bank is "of any
assistance at all in this area" or "duplicative" or a "totally
separate institution."”

MR. KEYS answered that although he has heard of the bank, he
doesn't know anything about it; however, he offered to find out
nore i nformation.

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH offered thanks "to the director and ny
col | eague from Sutton (ph)."

4:02: 54 PM

CO CHAIR TARR asked M. Keyes to share the average age of the
Al askan farmer, in order to "underscore the inportance of
getting people involved in agriculture.”

MR. KEYES offered his understanding that it is 57.

CO- CHAIR TARR opined that it should be made known to Al askans
the opportunities available in agriculture.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -32- March 17, 2017



MR. KEYES said feeding people is a billion-dollar industry in
Al aska. He conti nued:

There is nothing but opportunity to take those food
dollars away from the California farners or Mexican
[farmers] or whatever. You know, no ... offense to
them - they do a great job of feeding us. But as

a producer and a farmer ... 1've never felt like I was
conpeting with my neighbor or ... ny vendors at the
farmers market ...; | felt like we were conplenenting
each other in going after sonmething that was very
vul nerable for us to take away.

PRESENTATI ON(S) :  NENANA AGRI CULTURE LAND

4:04: 27 PM

CO-CHAIR TARR announced that the final order of business would
be the presentati on about Nenana Agricul ture Land.

4:05:36 PM

ELI JAH VERHAGEN, Staff, Representative Dave Talerico, Al aska
State Legislature, gave a PowerPoint presentation, "Nenana
Totchaket Bridge To Resources,” on behalf of Representative
Tal eri co. [A hard copy of the PowerPoint presentation is
included in the commttee packet.] He noted that the City of
Nenana is |ocated approximately "45 mnutes down the Parks
H ghway" from Fairbanks, Al aska.

MR. VERHAGEN pointed out the farm and of Nenana, as shown in an
aerial photograph on slide 2 of the PowerPoint, and he said
Nenana is not «currently described as a farmng conmunity,
al though there are many farns there. M. Verhagen shared that
he had bailed hay in Nenana as a youth. He said Nenana has
wheat, potato, and peony farns, and the farmng there has the
potential to expand. As shown on slide 3, he pointed to an area
across the Nenana River where there is access to agricultural
| and.

4:07: 06 PM

MR. VERHAGEN turned to slide 4, and he stated that the Nenana
Totchaket State Agricultural Project conprises approximtely
133,000 acres starting on the Totchaket right-of-way road.

4:08: 30 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 33- March 17, 2017



ARTHUR KEYS, Director, Division of Agriculture, Departnment of
Nat ural Resources, stated, "This area has an advantage over
other agriculture areas." He directed attention to slide 5 and
poi nted to Fairbanks and the project on a map, and he estimted
"it's about a 45-minute drive," which he opined is "financially
viable ... for a young farmer to start a farm and get to the
market." He noted that slide 4 had listed "class 4 soils.” He
offered his understanding that the area has 100,000 acres of the
type of soil that would be viable for an agricultural project
and, thus, that the division would be "looking to sell." He
added that the conditions of the soil can be deterni ned once the
I and is cl eared.

4:10: 39 PM

MR. KEYS directed attention to slide 7 to show an exanple of
what an agriculture project would look like for a young farmer
clearing land, farmng, and eventually being able to expand the
farm He tal ked about 10-20 acres being an access road and the
two 10-acre "chunks on each corner” [of the chart] reflects
ground that is not set up for agricultural purposes, but instead
a devel opnent area holding sone type of service area needed,

such as a machine shop or gas station. He indicated that the
graph shows how expansion goes to 20-acre parcels and then to
40- acre parcels. He said all the parcels could be sold to
people who intend to farm them and there would be sonme success,
t hough not 100 percent. He said, "That's what you would
encourage after ... a few years and just keep ... that success
grow ng."

4:12:18 PM

MR. VERHAGEN commented that there are many people excited to
access this |and. He informed the conmttee that he was born
and raised in Nenana. He related that he knows a farmer from
| daho, who has noved to Nenana, bought an existing farm and is
now farmng potatoes for a third year, because "the market's
better to sell potatoes here.”

4:11:36 PM

MR KEYS, in response to a question from Representative
Rauscher, stated his intent is for the smaller parcels to be
sold first and for the 40-acre and 80-acre parcels to be held
back. He said certainly there are no restrictions that would
keep a farnmer fromselling his/her farm but the next owner wll

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 34- March 17, 2017



be under the sane stipulations. One person could buy up all the
land, and he said he would assune anyone who did that would
intend to farmthe |and, because "it's not a resort investnment."

He stated, "If they could farmit all, ... nore power to them?"
He said the division has sold land as |arge as 600 acres; there
are farmers in Delta Junction who own thousands of acres. In

response to a followup question, he said he thinks the division
needs to offer smaller parcels for young people [to get a start
in farming]. He reiterated that he did not borrow noney for his
farm however, he stated that he thinks it is much wi ser to go
into debt to farm 20 acres than to farm 200 acres.

4:16: 30 PM

MR. VERHAGEN drew attention to slide 8, which list other |and
owners besides the state. He said, "Once this bridge is
conplete ..., it'll open up to over 600,000 state acres, 133,000
of which are the designated [agriculture] l|and." He said the
Toghot hel e Native Corporation owns 40,000 acres; Al aska Mnta
Health Trust Land is 11,000 acres, and the University of Al aska
land is 640 acres. He interjected that [Representative
Talerico's office] has received over eight letters of support.
He continued to slide 9, which shows where the |and owners are
| ocated on a map. He said once the bridge is built, there wll
be access to the agricultural land, and [land] can be sold as
the road is extended on the right-of-way.

4:19:17 PM

MR. VERHAGEN noved on to slides 10-14, showing the existing
[dirt] road, aerial views depicting the already existing Little
Nenana Bridge, and remmining on-site materials. M. Ver hagen
expl ai ned that work was del ayed because ice gave way as a result
of a warnmer than wusual wnter; therefore, there is one nore
piling to install. The individual shown on slide 14 is the
mayor of Nenana, Jason Myrand, who has "headed up this
project."

MR, VERHAGEN turned to slides 15-16 and said the inception of
the project was in the 1980s; the right-of-way was obtained
through DNR in 1984; 11 mles of road and 3 small bridges were
built in 2008-2009; the required National Environnmental Policy
Act of 1969 (NEPA) docunment was conpleted and submitted to the
United States Coast Guard (USCG for the required permt [in
March 2014]; there has been funding of just over $6 mllion; and
a grant of $3 million made it possible to extend the road from 4
to approximately 15 mles.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 35- March 17, 2017



4:22:12 PM

MR. VERHAGEN directed attention to slide 17, which offers a
summary, including that: the project has great potential for
the entire state; the governor of Al aska has been participating;
and letters of support were received, including from Doyon,
Limted ("Doyon"), Tanana Chiefs Conference (TCC), Nenana Native
Council, and the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority. He
stated that conpletion of the bridge would bring access to the
| and, which could be used for many things, including as a source
of tinmber. Referring to slide 17, M. Verhagen relayed that the
City of Nenana has been waiting a long tinme for the bridge
permt; the governor and the comm ssioner of DNR have both
spoken with the USCG admiral, who has said the renmaining permt
will be issued in June [2017]; and [the City of Nenana] is
currently looking to secure the remaining necessary funds.

4:23:50 PM

WYNN MENEFEE, Deputy Director, Trust Land Ofice (TLO, Al aska
Mental Health Trust Authority, stated that TLO is supportive of
the bridge, because it would open up the trust's land for
extracting various resources, as well as for selling |and, which
in turn would benefit the beneficiaries of the trust.

4:24:25 PM

CO- CHAIR TARR offered her understanding that the permt status
had been holding the project back, but now that status has been
resol ved. She asked if a letter of support from the House
Resources Standing Commttee woul d be beneficial.

4:25: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO answered that it would, although he said
he is "feeling pretty confortable that we're kind of on the
right direction for the permt." He said all the information
has been provided to Al aska's congressional delegates, because
“there is noney involved to get the rest of the bridge up." He
said he doesn't like the term "shovel ready" projects, because
it does not convey the worth of a project. The project being
proposed benefits many, including the state, the Al aska Mental
Health Trust Authority, the University of Alaska, and a |ocal
vill age corporation. He said there are about 100,000 people in
the North Star Borough; it is hub; and [the project could result
in] fresh food versus shipped food. He indicated that the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 36- March 17, 2017



congressional delegation involvenment is likely necessary. He
expressed appreciation for the previously nentioned groups in
support of the project, as well as for |local farners. He
enphasi zed that although the area is not yet known for farm ng,
there are Yupik farners in Nenana who offer produce that people
can cone pick thenselves. There is also a successful tree farm
He said he is excited about "the 100,000 potential acres.” He
tal ked about the idea of creating an opportunity for people to
attach their PFDs to the purchase of land in order to create a
busi ness.

4:29:04 PM

MR. VERHAGEN added that Nenana has for sonme tine been known as a
hub for transportation: the railroad goes through the area;
there are three barge lines there that ship to rural areas; and
t he Parks H ghway reaches Nenana.

4:29:29 PM

CO CHAI R TARR expressed interest in having the commttee wite a
letter in support of the project and submt it to the

congressional delegation, as well as to any other interested
parties.
4:30: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked if the intention is to finance the
bridge with federal and private noni es.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO answered, "W are really hoping that
sonehow or another we will get that support in an effort from
themto help us step forward.” He remarked on the resiliency of
the comunity of Nenana, which has wthstood floods and "big
changes. " He shared that the Cty of Nenana is one of the
oldest in state, and he characterized its residents as "a great
group of people.™ He surm sed that there are probably enough
young people in Nenana that could "turn into a farmng
wor kf orce” and "make this go." He said there are local sawmlls
that can use the white spruce tinber that would have to be
cl eared before the |land coul d be farned.

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked for i nformation regar di ng
exploratory wells in the area.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO deferred to M. Verhagen

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -37- March 17, 2017



4:32:15 PM

MR. VERHAGEN stated that Doyon has been drilling for oil and gas
in the area for years, nostly on its land, but also on sone
| eased state |ands. He said Doyon has built 11 mles of the
road with its own noney, as well as having built the three
smal l er bridges to access the oil and gas. He said the conpany
is "very excited for this to nove forward.”" He said the conpany
has three wells and has found "caves," which he explained are
enpty wells. He stated, "They're ... investing a |ot because
they ... believe they're going to ... find what they're |ooking
for."

4:33:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO added that one critical conponent to
agriculture is having a source of water, and there is plenty of
water in the area.

4:33:41 PM

CO CHAIR TARR invited Representative Talerico to draft a letter
for the House Resources Standing Comrittee's consideration.

4:34:12 PM
ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Conmttee nmeeting was adjourned at 4:34 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 38- March 17, 2017



